
The Woods at Polaris Condominium Association



BYLAWS

(Code of Regulations)

**Effective
December 6, 2004**

NOTICE

This document is for reference only. The original document, "DECLARATION AND BYLAWS" for The Woods at Polaris Condominiums, is on file with the Delaware County Recorder, Delaware, Ohio.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I NAME AND LOCATION..... 3

ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS..... 3

ARTICLE III PURPOSE AND POWERS 3

ARTICLE IV UNIT OWNERS (MEMBERS)..... 4

Composition (Section 1.) 4

Annual Meetings (Section 2.) 4

Special Meetings (Section 3.) 5

Notice of Meetings (Section 4.) 5

Quorum Adjournment (Section 5.) 5

Proxies (Section 6.) 5

Voting Power (Section 7.) 5

Action In Writing Without Meeting (Section 8.) 5

Assessments (Section 9.) 5

ARTICLE V BOARD OF DIRECTORS 5

Initial Directors (Section 1.) 5

Successor Directors (Section 2.) 5

Removal (Section 3.) 6

Nomination (Section 4.) 6

Election (Section 5.) 6

Compensation (Section 6.) 6

Regular Meetings (Section 7.) 6

Special Meetings (Section 8.) 6

Quorum (Section 9.) 6

Voting Power (Section 10.) 7

Action In Writing Without Meeting (Section 11.) 7

Powers (Section 12.) 7

Duties (Section 13.) 8

ARTICLE VI OFFICERS 8

Enumeration of Officers (Section 1.) 8

Selection and Term (Section 2.) 9

Special Appointments (Section 3.) 9

Resignation and Removal (Section 4.) 9

Duties (Section 5.) 9

 President 9

 Secretary 9

 Treasurer 9

ARTICLE VII COMMITTEES..... 9

ARTICLE VIII BOOKS AND RECORDS 10

ARTICLE IX AUDITS 10

ARTICLE X	FISCAL YEAR.....	10
ARTICLE XI	AMENDMENTS	10
ARTICLE XII	TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN ASSOCIATION AND DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES.....	11
ARTICLE XIII	INDEMNIFICATION	
	Third Party Actions (Section 1.).....	11
	Derivative Actions (Section 2.).....	11
	Other Determinations of Rights (Section 3.)	11
	Indemnification of Agents and Others (Section 4.)	12
	Advances of Expenses (Section 5.).....	12
	Non-exclusiveness: Heirs (Section 6.).....	12
	Purchase of Insurance (Section 7.).....	12
ARTICLE XIV	DURATION	
ARTICLE XV	DISSOLUTION	13
ARTICLE XVI	SEAL.....	13

BYLAWS
(Code of Regulations)
OF
THE WOODS AT POLARIS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I
NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the Association is The Woods at Polaris Condominium Association, ("the Association"), which corporation, not-for-profit, is created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 1702 of the Revised Code of Ohio, and which Association is also created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 5311 of the Revised Code of Ohio as the Unit Owners' Association for The Woods at Polaris Condominiums. The principal office of the Association shall be as set forth in its Articles of Incorporation, ("the Articles"), and the place of meetings of Unit Owners (members) and of the Directors (Board of Managers) of the Association shall be at such place in the county in which the Condominium Property is located as the Board of Directors ("the Board"), may from time to time designate.

ARTICLE II
DEFINITIONS

All of the terms used herein shall have the same meanings as set forth in the Declaration of The Woods at Polaris Condominiums, ("the Declaration"), recorded simultaneously herewith with the recorder of the county in which the Condominium Property is located.

ARTICLE III
PURPOSE AND POWERS

Forthwith upon the creation of the Association the undersigned is creating a condominium under the provisions of Chapter 5311 of the Revised Code of Ohio, known as The Woods at Polaris Condominiums ("the Condominium"), located in the City of Columbus, Ohio. The purposes for which the Association is formed are to be and act as the Unit Owners Association for the Condominium, to provide for the maintenance, preservation and architectural control of the property of the Condominium, and to promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Condominium, and for these purposes to:

- (a) exercise all of the powers and privileges and perform all of the duties and obligations of the Association as set forth in these Articles of Incorporation, and the Declaration and

Bylaws of the Condominium ("the Articles", "the Declaration", and "the Bylaws", respectively);

(b) fix, levy, collect and enforce payment by any lawful means, of all charges or assessments pursuant to the terms of the Declaration, or pursuant to other agreements between the owners, and pay all expenses in connection therewith and all office and other expenses incident of the conduct of the business of the Association;

(c) acquire (by gift, purchase or otherwise), own, hold, improve, build upon, operate, maintain, convey, sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of real or personal property in connection with the affairs of the Association;

(d) borrow money to fulfill its purposes and invest reserves and excess funds in government insured accounts or such other investments as the members approve;

(e) administer and enforce terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions and regulations upon, under and subject to which the Condominium or any part thereof may now or hereafter be used, and fix and provide any such terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions and regulations, and administer, enforce, alter, amend, change, add to, extend, waive, or terminate, in whole or in part, any of the same;

(f) function and act as the Unit Owners Association of the Condominium, under the provisions of Chapter 5311 of the Revised Code of Ohio, and delegate such authority as it desires to a managing agent;

(g) have and exercise any and all powers, rights and privileges which a corporation organized under Chapter 1702 may now or hereafter have or exercise by law; and

(h) take any action necessary, expedient, incidental, appropriate or convenient to the carrying out of the foregoing purposes.

ARTICLE IV

UNIT OWNERS (MEMBERS)

Section 1. Composition. Membership in the Association shall be as provided in the Declaration.

Section 2. Annual Meetings. Regular annual meetings of the Unit Owners shall be held in the first calendar quarter of each year hereafter, on a date and at an hour established, from time to time, by the Board.

Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Unit Owners may be called at any time by the president or by the Board, upon written request of Unit Owners entitled to exercise one-fourth (1/4) or more of the voting power of Unit Owners, and when required by the Condominium Act.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of Unit Owners shall be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least five days before such meeting, to each Unit Owner entitled to vote at such meeting, addressed to the Unit Owner's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such Unit Owner to the Association for the purpose of notice, or by delivering a copy of that notice at such address at least five (5) days before the meeting. The notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

Section 5. Quorum: Adjournment. The Unit Owners present, in person or by proxy, at any duly called and noticed meeting of Unit Owners, shall constitute a quorum for such meeting. Unit Owners entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of Unit Owners represented at a meeting may, at any time, adjourn such meeting. If any meeting is so adjourned, notice of such adjournment need not be given if the time and place to which such meeting is adjourned are fixed and announced at such meeting.

Section 6. Proxies. At any meeting of Unit Owners, a Unit Owner may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the secretary prior to the meeting. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by a Unit Owner of his, her or its Unit.

Section 7. Voting Power. Voting rights for members shall be as provided in the Declaration. Except as otherwise provided in the Condominium Organizational Documents, or by law, a majority of the voting power of Unit Owners voting on any matter that may be determined by the Unit Owners at a duly called and noticed meeting shall be sufficient to determine that matter. The rules of Roberts Rules of Order shall apply to the conduct of all meetings of Unit Owners except as otherwise specifically provided in the Condominium Organizational Documents or by law.

Section 8. Action In Writing Without Meeting. Any action that could be taken by Unit Owners at a meeting may be taken without a meeting with the affirmative vote or approval, in a writing or writings, of Unit Owners having not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the voting power of Unit Owners, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be required by the Condominium Organizational Documents, or by law.

Section 9. Assessments. Assessments, fees and charges for membership shall be as provided in the Declaration.

ARTICLE V BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Initial Directors. The initial Directors shall be those three (3) persons named as the initial Directors per the terms of the Declaration, or such other person or persons as may from time to time be substituted by the Declarant.

Section 2. Successor Directors. The number, times of election, and terms of office of those who will serve as Directors of the Association to succeed the initial Directors, shall be as provided in the Declaration.

Section 3. Removal. Excepting only Directors named in the Articles or selected by Declarant, any Director may be removed from the Board with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Unit Owners. In the event of the death, resignation or removal of a Director other than one named in the Articles or a substitute selected by the Declarant, that Director's successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board and shall serve until the next annual meeting of Unit Owners, when a Director shall be elected to complete the term of such deceased, resigned or removed Director. Declarant shall have the sole right to remove, with or without cause, any Director designated in the Articles, or a substitute selected by the Declarant, and select the successor of any Director so selected who dies, resigns, is removed or leaves office for any reason before the election of Directors by all of the Unit Owners as provided in the Declaration.

Section 4. Nomination. Nominations for the election of Directors to be elected by the Unit Owners shall be made by a nominating committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the meetings. The nominating committee shall consist of a chairman, who shall be a member of the Board, and two or more Unit Owners, who are not members of the Board, appointed by the Board. The nominating committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board as it shall, in its discretion, determine, but no less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled.

Section 5. Election. Election to the Board by the Unit Owners shall be by secret written ballot. At such elections, the Unit Owners or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, such number of votes as they are entitled to under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected, and, likewise, those receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected to the longest terms. In cases of ties, the winner shall be determined by lot. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

Section 6. Compensation. Unless otherwise determined by the Unit Owners at a meeting duly called and noticed for such purpose, no Director shall receive compensation for any service rendered to the Association as a Director. However, any Director may be reimbursed for his or her actual expenses incurred in the performance of duties.

Section 7 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on such dates and at such places and times as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board.

Section 8. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board shall be held when called by the president of the Board, or by a majority of the Directors, after not less than three (3) days notice to each Director.

Section 9. Quorum. The presence at any duly called and noticed meeting, in person or by proxy, of Directors entitled to cast a majority of the voting power of Directors shall constitute a quorum for such meeting.

Section 10. Voting Power. Each Director shall be entitled to a single vote, and, except as otherwise provided in the Condominium Organizational Documents, or by law, vote of a majority of the Directors voting on any matter that may be determined by the Board at a duly called and noticed meeting at which a quorum is present shall be sufficient to determine that matter.

Section 11. Action In Writing Without Meeting. Any action that could be taken by the Board at a meeting may be taken without a meeting with the affirmative vote or approval, in a writing or writings, of all of the Directors.

Section 12. Powers. The Board shall exercise all powers and authority, under law, in the Condominium Act and under the provisions of the Condominium Organizational Documents, that are not specifically and exclusively reserved to the Unit Owners by law or by other provisions thereof, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board shall have the right, power and authority to:

- (a) take all actions deemed necessary or desirable to comply with all requirements of law, and Condominium Organizational Documents;
- (b) obtain insurance coverage no less than that required pursuant to the Declaration;
- (c) enforce the covenants, conditions and restrictions set forth in the Declaration;
- (d) repair, maintain and improve the Common Elements;
- (e) establish, enforce, levy and collect assessments, late fees, delinquent interest, and such other charges as are provided for in the Declaration;
- (f) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Elements and the personal conduct of Unit Owners, occupants, and their guests thereon, and establish and levy enforcement charges for the infraction thereof;
- (g) suspend the voting rights of a Unit Owner during any period in which such Unit Owner shall be in default in the payment of any charge levied by the Association [such rights may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days for each infraction of published rules and regulations or of any provisions of the Condominium Organizational Documents];
- (h) declare the office of a member of the Board to be vacant in the event such Director shall be absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the Board;
- (i) subject to such approvals, if any, as may be required pursuant to the provisions of Condominium Organizational Documents, authorize the officers to enter into one or more agreements necessary or desirable to fulfill the purposes and objectives of the Association, including, without

limitation, management agreements, purchase agreements and loan documents, all on such terms and conditions as the Board in its sole and absolute discretion may determine;

(j) cause funds of the Association to be invested in such reasonable investments as the Board may from time to time determine;

(k) borrow funds, as needed, and pledge such security and rights of the Association as might be necessary or desirable to obtain any such loan; and

(l) do all things and take all actions permitted to be taken by the Association by law, or the Condominium Organizational Documents not specifically reserved thereby to others.

Section 13. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board to:

(a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the Unit Owners at each annual meeting of Unit Owners, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by Unit Owners representing one-half (1/2) or more of the voting power of Unit Owners;

(b) supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association and see that their duties are properly performed;

(c) as more fully provided in the Declaration, to establish, levy, enforce and collect assessments;

(d) issue, or to cause an appropriate representative to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid;

(e) procure and maintain insurance and bonds as provided in the Declaration, and as the Board deems advisable;

(f) cause the property subject to the Association's jurisdiction to be maintained within the scope of authority provided in the Declaration;

(g) cause the restrictions created by the Declaration to be enforced; and

(h) take all other actions required to comply with all requirements of law and the Condominium Organizational Documents.

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS

Section 1. Enumeration of Officers. The officers of this Association shall be a president, a secretary, a treasurer and such other officers as the Board may from time to time determine. No officer

need be a member of the Association nor need any officer be a Director. The same person may hold more than one office.

Section 2. Selection and Term. Except as otherwise specifically provided in the Declaration or by law, the officers of the Association shall be selected by the Board, from time to time, to serve until the Board selects their successors.

Section 3. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 4. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the president, or the secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 5. Duties. The duties of the officers shall be as the Board may from time to time determine. Unless the Board otherwise determines, the duties of the officers shall be as follows:

(a) President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board, shall have the authority to see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out, and shall sign all legal instruments on behalf of the Association.

(b) Secretary. The secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes and proceedings of meetings of the Board and of the Unit Owners, serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the Unit Owners, keep appropriate current records showing the names of Unit Owners of the Association together with their addresses, and shall act in the place and stead of the president in the event of the president's absence or refusal to act.

(c) Treasurer. The treasurer shall assume responsibility for the receipt and deposit in such bank accounts, and investment of funds in such vehicles, as the Board directs, the disbursement of such funds as directed by the Board, the keeping of proper books of account, the preparation of an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the Unit Owners at annual meetings, and the delivery or mailing of a copy of each to each of the Unit Owners.

ARTICLE VII

COMMITTEES

The Board shall appoint a nominating committee and may appoint such other committees as it deems appropriate in carrying out its purposes.

ARTICLE VIII
BOOKS AND RECORDS

The books, records and financial statements of the Association, including annual audited financial statements when such are prepared, shall be available during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances, upon request to the Association, for inspection by Unit Owners and the holders, insurers and guarantors of first mortgages on Units. Likewise, during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances, the Association shall have available for inspection by Unit Owners, holders, insurers and guarantors of first mortgages on Units, and prospective purchasers, current copies of the Condominium Organizational Documents and the rules and regulations governing operation of the Condominium.

ARTICLE IX
AUDITS

The Board shall cause the preparation and furnishing of an audited financial statement for the immediately preceding fiscal year, within one hundred twenty days following the end of such fiscal year, in the following circumstances:

Section 1. To each requesting Unit Owner, at the expense of the Association, upon the affirmative vote of Unit Owners exercising a majority of the voting power of Unit Owners;

Section 2. So long as the Condominium contains fewer than fifty (50) Units, to each holder, insurer, or guarantor of a first mortgage upon a Unit who requests the same, in writing, provided the audit, if an audited statement is not already available, shall be prepared at the expense of such requesting party; and

Section 3. During such time, if any, as the Condominium contains fifty (50) or more Units, to each holder, insurer or guarantor of a first mortgage on a Unit who makes written request therefor, at the expense of the Association.

ARTICLE X
FISCAL YEAR

Unless otherwise changed by the Board, the fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and end on the 31st day of December of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation of this Association.

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENTS

Any modification or amendment of these Bylaws shall be made only by means of an amendment to the Declaration, in the manner and subject to the approvals, terms and conditions set

forth therein, and shall be effective from the time a certificate setting forth such modification or amendment is delivered for recording to the Recorder of the county in which the Condominium is located.

ARTICLE XII

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN ASSOCIATION AND
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES

No contract or other transaction shall be void or in any way affected or invalidated by the fact that it is between the Association and one or more of its directors, officers or employees or between the Association and any other corporation, firm, Association or other entity in which one or more of the directors, officers or employees of this Association are directors, officers, stockholders or otherwise financially interested, provided that: (1) the interest of any such director, officer or employee is disclosed or made known to the board of directors or such members thereof as shall be present at any meeting of the board of directors at which any action on such contract or transaction shall be taken; and (2) at such meeting there is a quorum of directors, without counting the interested directors, and the contract or transaction is approved by a sufficient number of votes without counting the vote or votes of such interested directors; and (3) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Association as of the time it is authorized or approved.

ARTICLE XIII

INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. Third Party Actions. The Association shall indemnify any person who is or was a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit, or proceeding, including all appeals, other than an action, suit or proceeding by or in the right of the Association, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee, or volunteer of the Association, against expenses (including attorney's fees), judgments, fines, penalties, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by that person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, if that person acted in good faith and in a manner that person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, if that person had no reasonable cause to believe that person's conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not create, of itself, a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which that person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Association and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, a presumption that the person had reasonable cause to believe that the person's conduct was unlawful.

Section 2. Derivative Actions. The Association shall indemnify any person who is or was a party, or threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending, or completed action or suit, including all appeals, by or in the right of the Association to procure a judgment in its favor, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee, or volunteer of the Association, against expenses (including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by that person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit, if the person acted in good faith, and in a manner that

person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association, except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of (a) any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person is finally adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct, in the performance of that person's duty to the Association unless, and only to the extent that, the court of common pleas or the court in which such action or suit was brought determines, upon application, that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court of common pleas or such other court considers proper, or (b) any action or suit in which a director is found liable only pursuant to the provisions of Section 1702.55 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. Other Determinations of Rights. Unless ordered by a court any indemnification under paragraphs (1) and (2) of this Article shall be made by the Association only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee or volunteer is proper under the circumstances because that person has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in paragraphs (1) and (2) of this Articles. Such determination shall be made in any one of the following manners:(a) by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors of the Association who were not and are not parties to or threatened with the action, suit or proceeding referred to in paragraph (1) or (2) of this Article, or (b) by the members by majority vote.

Section 4. Indemnification of Agents and Others. The Association may, from time to time, and in its sole discretion, indemnify any person who is or was an agent, or other authorized representative of the Association, other than those described under paragraphs (1) and (2) who may be indemnified, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, or employee of another corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against that person or incurred by that person in any such capacity or arising out of that person's status as such, in the same manner and to the same extent as provided herein for directors, officers, employees and volunteers of the Association.

Section 5. Advances of Expenses. Expenses of each person indemnified herein incurred in defending a civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative action, suit or proceeding (including all appeals), or threat thereof, may be paid by the Association in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit, or proceeding as authorized by the board of directors, whether a disinterested quorum exists or not, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such person, to repay such amount, if it is ultimately determined that that person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Association.

Section 6. Non-exclusiveness: Heirs. The foregoing rights of indemnification are not exclusive, and shall be in addition to any other rights granted to those seeking indemnification as a mater of law, or under these Articles, the regulations, any agreement, vote of members or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to actions in their official capacities and as to actions in another capacity while holding their offices or positions, shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee, member, manager, agent, or volunteer, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of such a person.

Section 7. Purchase of Insurance. The Association may purchase and maintain insurance, or furnish similar protection, including but not limited to trust funds, letters of credit, or self-

insurance, for or on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, agent, employee, or volunteer of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, employee, member, manager, agent or volunteer of another corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against that person or incurred by that person in any such capacity, or arising out of that person's status as such, whether or not the Association would have the power to indemnify that person against such liability under the provisions of this Article or of the Ohio Nonprofit Corporation Law. Insurance may be purchased from or maintained with a person in which the Association has a financial interest.

ARTICLE XIV

DURATION

The Association shall exist so long as the condominium regime of the Condominium exists, and no longer.

ARTICLE XV

DISSOLUTION

The Association may be dissolved only with the same consents as are required to terminate the Condominium regime, as provided in the Declaration.

ARTICLE XVI

SEAL

The directors may adopt a seal which, if adopted, shall be in such form as the directors from time to time may determine.